

GUARDIAN CONSULTANT

Touch Screen or Desktop PC

Refrigeration Management Platform

for Supermarkets and Coldstores

USER GUIDE

Instantly tells you what you want to know ...when you need to know it!



DRAFT B 15/04/99 dh / mtm

GUARDIAN Tel. +44 (0) 1270 760599 Fax. +44 (0) 1270 766804 Email: <u>sales@Guardian-controls.com</u> www.Guardian-controls.com



CONTENTS

CONTENTS	2
INTRODUCTION	3
ABOUT THE COMPANY	3
About This Guide	
ABOUT CONSULTANT	
OVERVIEW	4
DISPLAY OPERATION	5
TOOLBAR BUTTONS	5
SITE MIMIC (MAIN OVERVIEW)	
Site Detail	6
Area Detail	7
Area Values	7
CURRENT ALARMS	
Alarm Archive	9
UNIT MIMIC (UNIT STATUS OVERVIEW)	
Unit Detail	
Unit Values	
Unit Parameters	
Unit Graphs	
ALARM SYSTEM	13
MAIN MENU BUTTON	
Authorized User Password Log On	
DISPLAY CURRENT ALARMS	
PASSWORD ALLOCATION	



INTRODUCTION

About the Company

The company was originally founded in 1983; supplying microprocessor based control and monitoring equipment. In 1989 our first stand-alone case controller (the ITC952) was developed and installed in Tesco stores within the UK. Since then a range of over 30 product types for control and monitoring have been supplied world-wide into a wide variety of supermarket and industrial refrigeration applications. The company was restructured and changed its name to Guardian Controls International in April 2001 If you have any gueries about the company or the Consultant system, please contact us:

Email: sales@guardian-controls.com web site: <u>www.guardian-controls.com</u> telephone: +44 (0)1270 760599 Fax: +44 (0)1270 766804

We are committed to continually improving all of our products, and welcome any feedback regarding this manual, the Consultant system or any of its associated components. In addition we are keen to receive suggestions that will help to improve future versions of our products.

About This Guide

This guide is aimed at store staff and refrigeration service personnel who need to be able to use the *Consultant* system. It aims to explain the facilities available within the software and how these may be exploited.

It is assumed that the user is familiar with the basic principles of touch screen and /or keyboard and mouse operations.

About Consultant

Consultant provides refrigeration managers, engineers and service personnel with the opportunity to improve their product quality, operating performance and running costs in supermarkets and coldstores. The system has been specifically designed to improve the temperature management, maintenance and efficiency of cases, coldstore evaporators, compressors and condensers.



OVERVIEW

The Consultant system is a state of the art graphical front end for industrial and supermarket refrigeration monitoring and control. Its ability to support either touch-screen or keyboard and mouse operation combined with a windowing interface make it easy to understand and use.



The Consultant system provides the following facilities:

- Continuous monitoring of all information supported by remote control and monitoring units. This includes setpoints, alarm limits, configuration data, etc, as well as continuously updating values.
- Mimic (graphical) representations of the current state of the whole site, up to 8 separate areas within it.
- Mimic representations of the current state of individual items as reported by remote control and monitoring units.
- Logging of all data once every minute and recording this for up to one year (all data is recorded, including setpoints, alarm limits, configuration data, etc).
- Graph displays of the performance of remote units. Up to 8 graphs with 8 traces each may be configured (including allowing retrospective graphing).
- Logging of all alarm events that occur for up to one year, with identification of all alarms that are pending or require a user to acknowledge them.
- Flexible alarm archive search capability that allows patterns of alarm events to be assessed.
- Logging of the last 10000 events that have occurred within the system (user activities, system activities, alarm assertions, alarm clear-downs, etc).
- Ability to adjust parameters associated with remote control and monitoring units.
- User administration facilities that allow the secure operation of the system and to allow audit tracing of user actions.
- Front-end alarming of temperatures associated with evaporators (e.g. display cases or coldstorage rooms) in order to implement the latest food safety policies of the site owner.
- Integration of control and monitoring equipment from many different suppliers.
- Some (specifically limited) control and override capabilities.



DISPLAY OPERATION

Toolbar Buttons

Users interact with the Consultant system via either a touch screen or a mouse. Most simple operations can be carried out either by touching or pointing at an item on a mimic (diagram or picture) or clicking on a toolbar button.

The toolbar is visible at the bottom of the screen on all pages:



As different pages of information are displayed, different toolbar buttons will be made available. Different toolbar buttons are available dependent on the access level of the user password logged on.



Some buttons appear on the toolbar of most displays.

Print Provided the *Consultant* system is fitted with a printer, touching or clicking on the "Print " button may be used to provide a hardcopy of the screen on display.



Go Bock Touching or clicking with the mouse on the "Main Menu" button always returns the screen to the Site Mimic (Main Overview) display as shown on page 6

Touching or clicking with the mouse on the "Back" button always returns the screen to the display screen previously selected.



Touching or clicking with the mouse on the "Previous" button always displays the same display screen for the previous unit.

Touching or clicking with the mouse on the "Next" button always displays the same display screen for the next unit in sequence.



Touching or clicking with the mouse on the "Alarm" button always displays the Current Alarm display.

For details of how to Accept an Alarm event see ALARM SYSTEM page 13



Site Mimic (Main Overview)

The display shows a mimic representation of the site. This overview indicates the state of all control and monitoring units that are connected to it. When Consultant is being used within a supermarket environment (where there are large numbers of remote units) this view is typically that of the sales floor cases. On sites with fewer remote units (such as smaller convenience stores or industrial sites) it is likely that all of the units will be shown.

TESCO Naccesteld 2	Horn University [15.25.46	6 01/04/1999 [mms]
Plant. TE	Macclesfield 2	Coldrooms
	Here Alarm (Tashing	
	Castion Alarm (the Stie Action) Alarm (Signal On Sha) Alarma (Insettion) Hiermal (Insettion)	
	Hormal (Active)	
2 2 2	🛛 🗶 🕭 💭 🗳	9. 1 E 🖳



Each unit shown on the overview mimic is coloured to indicate its current operating state, or if it has fault conditions pending, an indication of the most serious fault is shown instead.

The colour key defines how the status of each unit is identified.

If there is not enough room on the mimic for all of the units supported by the system then there will usually be one or more "area buttons".

An area button indicates the most severe alarm that is pending in the area to which it relates, or is coloured grey to indicate that no alarms are pending.

In the example above Plant is red for alarm, Coldrooms are grey for no

alarms.

Site Detail

The site detail page shows the same information as the site mimic page, however it shows it as a list of all units on the site instead of graphically.



Area Mimic (Area Overview)

An area mimic is used to show a detailed overview of units within an area of the site.

One area view may geographically overlap another, and may or may not indicate information that could be found on the site mimic display.

For example, touching or clicking the **Plant** button on the Site Mimic might display roof top compressors opposite

or selection the **Coldroom** button might display the coldroom layout

Touching or clicking on the





individual units displays the unit mimic as shown on page 10

Area Detail

The area detail page shows the same information as the area mimic page, however it shows it as a list of all units within the area instead of graphically.

Area Values

It is often useful to be able to look at sets of key status information for all units within an area in tabular form. The area values display allows for the same 6 data points to be shown as a table for all of the units within the area.



Current Alarms

The alarm list shows all of the alarms that have occurred and whether or not they have cleared or been accepted. The column marked "Action" shows "A" for an accepted alarm, "C" for a cleared alarm, "+" for an engineering alarm and "!" for an alarm which has had a comment logged by the user who accepted it. The "Time & Date" column shows the time at which an alarm occurred. "Unit" and "System" both indicate details of the unit that had the alarm event. The "Point Name" and "Severity" columns indicate the type of fault.

Individual alarm events can be viewed by selecting them by touching with a finger or with the mouse if fitted. Alternatively this can be done or by touching or clicking on the buttons on the left-hand side of the screen with the mouse

If there is more than one screen-full of alarm events, a moving the scroll bar appears on the right hand side of the display.

Alarm events can be selected by touching the scroll bar with a finger and dragging it down or with the mouse by clicking on the scroll bar and holding down the left mouse button whilst moving the mouse.

If the alarm that has been selected has not been accepted it will be shown in red.

In addition, a new button marked "Accept" will be shown.

When alarms have been accepted and cleared they automatically disappear from the Current Alarm display and are transferred into the Archive Alarm display.

For details of how to **Mute** and **Accept** an Alarm event see ALARM SYSTEM page 13

Time II, Bala	Seatern .	Description	Point Name		State	Descalu
	104	(HT9) Fruit 5 Veg Mailed	ecil. Last Coler		High	Major
						Major
	107					Mapor
Contract and the state of the state						Majoi
	100					Major
	100					Migot
						Major
	22					Mago
						Mago
	100					Macr
	104	HT0 Test & Viso Mobile	wik Last Court			Marca
						Major
10.26.58 12/07/1998	108	HT9 5 and Multicleck		a Uadate	Hah	Marce
10.26.5912/03/1999	121	HTS Fruit & Veg Multid	ech Last Const	u Updele	Hali	Major
10:27:00 12:03/1999	106				High	Miggor
10.27.0012/03/1998	105	HT9 Feat 5 Veg Matid				Major
15.31.1607/04/1998	System	System Link	Analogue	riput T	Hah	Max
	01/04/1			System U		
cepted at:		Point 1	100 CO 10			
		Value		Majar	Sequence	64
Seared at:	_	State Inte	44			
strong						
		D23:64 1223/46 134 D23:64 1223/47 133 D23:64 1223/47 133 D123:64 1223/47 133 D123:64 1223/47 133 D123:64 1223/47 137 D123:65 1223/47 137 D123:65 1223/47 137 D123:65 1223/47 137 D123:55 1223/47 137 D123:57 123/47 136 D23:57 123/47 <td< td=""><td>123:54 51:25:37:1293 123 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:24 12:25:37:1293 123 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:24 12:25:37:1293 123 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:24 12:25:37:1293 130 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:24:37:125:37:1293 131 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:24:37:125:37:1293 131 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:25:12:12:37:1293 132 HT3 Fuel 4. Very Made 123:25:12:12:37:1293 132 HT3 Fuel 4. Very Made 123:25:12:13:37:1293 137 HT3 Fuel 4. Very Made 123:25:12:13:37:1293 137 HT3 Fuel 4. Very Made 123:25:12:13:37:1293 <td< td=""><td>13125 65 12/33/1199 104 HT2 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 13225 65 12/33/1999 102 HT2 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT2 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 HT3 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95</td><td>12.2.5.6.7 12.3.1 13.1 14.7.5 Ford 5. Very Mandeeb. Last Comme Update 12.2.6.6.7 12.7.1 12.7.1 14.7.5 14</td><td>D22.5.5 12.5.17920 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 131 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 117 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 <</td></td<></td></td<>	123:54 51:25:37:1293 123 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:24 12:25:37:1293 123 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:24 12:25:37:1293 123 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:24 12:25:37:1293 130 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:24:37:125:37:1293 131 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:24:37:125:37:1293 131 HT3 Fuel 3. Very Made 123:25:12:12:37:1293 132 HT3 Fuel 4. Very Made 123:25:12:12:37:1293 132 HT3 Fuel 4. Very Made 123:25:12:13:37:1293 137 HT3 Fuel 4. Very Made 123:25:12:13:37:1293 137 HT3 Fuel 4. Very Made 123:25:12:13:37:1293 <td< td=""><td>13125 65 12/33/1199 104 HT2 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 13225 65 12/33/1999 102 HT2 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT2 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 HT3 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95</td><td>12.2.5.6.7 12.3.1 13.1 14.7.5 Ford 5. Very Mandeeb. Last Comme Update 12.2.6.6.7 12.7.1 12.7.1 14.7.5 14</td><td>D22.5.5 12.5.17920 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 131 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 117 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 <</td></td<>	13125 65 12/33/1199 104 HT2 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 13225 65 12/33/1999 102 HT2 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT2 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 101 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 65 12/33/1999 HT3 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 1325 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95 HT3 Frait Mag Maddells Last Comm 12/35 12/33/1999 95	12.2.5.6.7 12.3.1 13.1 14.7.5 Ford 5. Very Mandeeb. Last Comme Update 12.2.6.6.7 12.7.1 12.7.1 14.7.5 14	D22.5.5 12.5.17920 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 132 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 131 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 117 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.7 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 HTS Ford 5 Veg Markeds Last Comme Update High D22.6.5 127.071220 <



Alarm Archive

S-ainsbury	Selby Road	Leeds	10	am Archiv	e at 14:42:01	01/04/1999	14:42:20	1 01/04/1999 (et	#s]
Action	Tires & Date	Sga	tera Descriptio	n		Point Name	Sta	ba .	Severity
AC1+	11:08:54:23/	03/1999 118	Defi Serve	ikter (HT2)		Evaporator Temps			Minar
ACI+	15/40/11 23/	03/1999-102	Provision	Cate (IT 3)		FAM Fault Alam	Fal		Minor
AC1+	15.40:11.23/	03/1999 102		: Casse ()T3j		Correro Repet Ale			Minor
-, ACI+	15:40:11 23/	03/1999-105	Flovition	Cate (IT 3)		FAM Fault Alam	Fal		Minor
AC1+	15.40:11.23/	03/1999 105		: Casse ()T3j		Commo Repet Ale			Minor
ACI+	15:40:11 23/			: Cate (113)		FIAM Fault Alam	Fal		Minor
AC1+	15401223/			: Carre ()T3		Commo Repet Ale			Minar
- ACI+	15:40:12:23/	03/1999 103		: Cate (113)		FAM Fault Alam	Fal		Minor
AC1+	15.40.12.23/	03/1999 103		: Case ()T3j		Commo Repet Ale			Minor
ACI+	11:08:45:24/	03/1999-304				C1 Fault	Fal		Minor
AC1+	1812/05/24/	03/1999 231		: Caldroom (†		E vaposator Temps		Ŷ	Minor
ACI+	11:13:23 25/	03/1999 231		: Coldroom (H		Evaporator Temps		Ý	Minor
ACI	13.47.22.25/	103/1999 230		: Caldroom ()		Air Un Temperatu		h	Major
ACI+	10:19:41 26/	03/1999 232		: Coldroom (H		Superheat Recov			Minor
AC1+	12:09:39:26/	03/1999 232	Provision	: Caldroom ()	(T1)	Superheat Recov	any Fad		Minar
ACI+	12:29:12:26/	03/1999-304				Last Commo Upda	ke Hig	h	Major
AC1+	12:27:18:26/	03/1999 304				Last Connex Upda	¢a Hip	h	Magar
ACI+	12:42:53:26/	03/1999 241	Produce	Coldroom (H1	21	Superheat Recov	en Fal		Minor
AC1+	1243-20-26/	03/1999 231	Provision	: Caldroom ()	12)	Superheat Recov			Minar
ACI+	13021626/	03/1999-304	D HT2			Supfor Pressure	Low	4	Minor
AU.1+	1323534265	105/1922 222	Provision	: Caldroom (†	1111	Superheat Recov	an Fai		Minor
ACI.	09.49.3530/	03/1999-28	Frozen Fo	od Case ILŤ	וו –	Air Un Temperatur	e Hio	h	. Major
AC1	16:09:33:31/	03/1999 68	Fresh Me	et Cape [HT2	1	Air Un Temperatu	n Hig	h	Magar
AC1	18:22:02:31/	03/1999.95	Kosher N	eal Cate (H1	in in	Air On Temperatur	e Hio	h	Major
- 76	10.04.06.01/	04/1999 28	Freen Fr	od Cape JLT	11	Last Connex Upda	An Hig	ĥ	Magor
403	10:17:38/01/	04/1999.29		od Case ILT		Ail Of Temperatur			Major
Act	11:17:57 01/	04/1999 25		od Case JLT		Last Connec Upda			Magor
AC1	11:28:04:01/	04/1999.26		od Case ILT		Ail Of Temperatur			Major
Event	Details			Point De	stails				
0	couried at:	13:02:16 2	26/03/1999	System	304.0	Unit Name	HT2		
A	copted at:	1212212	26/03/1999	Point	207	Point Name	Suction Pre	999WR	
	cepted by:	AUTO		Value	12.6 PSIa	Severity	Minor	Sequence 13	23
		10.00.01.0	0 100 10 000			_			
	Cleared at:	1313213	6/03/1999	State	Lew	1000 alarms	from a total	of 1332 - Trunci	ked
Cer	nments: 🏧	to Accept							
	-	· 1	TT		- T				0

The Alarm Archive display may be selected by touching or clicking on the "Archive" button.

Individual alarm events can be viewed by selecting them by touching with a finger or with the mouse if fitted. Alternatively this can be done or by touching or clicking on the buttons on the left-hand side of the screen with the mouse or using the scrollbar.

This display has a button marked "Current" which when selected allows return back to the Current Alarm display

The "Unit" button allows display of the current status mimic of the unit and selecting the "Graph" button displays graphical values at the time of the alarm event.

The "Search" button allows display of a group of alarms selected by various search criteria such as all alarms for a particular unit or all high alarms for a particular month.

Unit Mimic (Unit Status Overview)

This mimic is displayed when the particular unit has been selected by touching or clicking with the mouse on a Site Overview or Area Mimic display

The display shows a mimic representation of the status of a particular display case, cold room cooler, condenser or compressor. This overview indicates the state of all control and monitoring devices, such as valves, heaters, motors, temperature and pressure measurement values, that are connected to the



Example of Compressor Unit mimic

Each device shown on the Unit Mimic is coloured to indicate its current operating state.

If it has fault conditions pending, an indication of the most serious



fault is shown instead.



The colour key below defines how the status of each unit is identified. Example of Display Case Unit mimic

Unit Detail

Touching or clicking on the "Detail" button gives a composite display for the unit which includes the Mimic, Tabular values, the Graph display for today and a list of the current alarm messages.

Unit Values

Touching or clicking on the "Values" button gives a display the major measurement, status and address identification values for the unit in tabular form.



Unit Parameters

Touching or clicking on the "Parameters" button gives a display of unit parameters and settings.

These parameters vary for each different unit type dependent on the complexity of the control requirements.

The ability to change particular parameters is dependent on the user access level of the user logged on

[HT7] Fresh Meat Multideck (QLink)	Unit Parameters - System 91
Category Control Defrosts EEV Front End Alarms Front End Misc Front End Mappings	Defrost 1 (HH.MM) Defrost 4 (HH.MM) 02:30 02:30 20:30 Defrost 2 (HH.MM) Defrost 5 (HH.MM) 00:00 Defrost 3 (HH.MM) 00:00 00:00 Defrost 3 (HH.MM) Defrost 6 (HH.MM) 00:00 Defrost 3 (HH.MM) Defrost 6 (HH.MM) Defrost 3 (HH.MM) Defrost 6 (HH.MM) Defrost 3 (HH.MM) Defrost 6 (HH.MM) Defrost 3 (HH.MM) Defrost 7 (HI.MM) Defrost 3 (HH.MM) 00:00 Defrost 3 (HH.MM) 00:00 Defrost 5 (HH.MM) 00:00 Defrost 7 (mins) 2:0 Defrost Fan Delay (mins) 2:0
Prink Mole Henu	Reactions New Point Cartal Science Sectors

to the system

Each unit has a number of pages of Parameter category displays

The display for a particular Parameter Category is selected by touching or clicking the mouse on one of the items in the category list at the left side of the display.

Parameters are changed using the up / down arrow buttons.

Parameter changes are sent to the appropriate controller using the "Send" button.



Unit Graphs

Touching or clicking on the "Graph" button gives a display of unit values and measurements as a graphical display.

The values or states displayed vary for each different unit type dependent on the complexity of the control requirements.

Up to 8 values can be displayed on each graph. The identity, colour and value of each graph is

Frozen Food Case (LT2)	Unit Grap Ge	h - System 1 narai	14:44:35 01/04/1999 [ews]
	All Temperature -27 °C a/Detroit Relay 0H	Effective Ewap Salpoint	33 °C Station Temperature 22 °C 1 % Evencedati Temperature 30 °C
20			
•	-		
10			
	and provent		. Alphangle approximations
-00			0 17:00 18:00 19:00 28:00 21:00 22:00 29:00 00:0
Time/Date: Mor 29 12:01		raph: 🛕 🔁 🔍	Scale: 🛕 1 day
Print Hom Henu	Acea Next Rect	Hind: Values Ort	of Deta Setup

indicated at the top of the display. The values displayed are those selected by the marker at the middle of the screen

Up to 8 graphs may be displayed for each unit. Other graphs for the unit are displayed by raising or lowering the Graph Number.

Each value or data point is recorded every minute.

All data is saved on disc for the last 12 months.

The period covered by the graph is selected by raising or lowering the Graph Scale.

The graph can be scaled to display from: - 1 hour, 8 hours, 1 day, 1 week, 1 month up to 1 year.

Touching or clicking the mouse on a particular section of the graph which is of interest results in that section being displayed in the centre of the screen at the next lower scale.

The graph can be moved along its axis quickly or slowly using the double or single arrow buttons.

The graph for a particular day and month can be selected after touching or clicking the "Date" button which displays a window for day and month selection.

When selected from an Alarm display, the Unit Graph displays Graph 1 on a 1 day scale with the time of the alarm at the centre of the screen.



ALARM SYSTEM

If an alarm occurs on the refrigeration alarm system, the sounder on the alarm panel will activate and the alarm lamp will start to flash.

In order to silence the alarm and accept responsibility for actioning the alarm procedure, the *Consultant* PC system requires an authorised user to log-on and accept the alarm event. An authorised user will have been provided with a user access code and password.

If you do not know your password then contact your manager or refrigeration contractor.



Main Menu Button

The system front screen is accessible at all times by touching or using the mouse to click the "Main menu" button:

The front screen shows a representation of the refrigerated areas managed by the *Consultant* system. The colour of each unit shown on this screen indicates its current operating state, flashing indicates any



units that have unaccepted alarms. Minor alarms (shown in orange) are primarily of interest to engineers only. These will not cause the sounder in the stock area to activate

To log-on to the system, use the mouse to click the "Access" button:





Authorized User Password Log On

To log-on to the system, touch or use the mouse to click the "Access" button:



The system will prompt for your user name, and a valid system user identity should be entered via the keyboard by touching the keys or clicking with the mouse.

Use BS (Back space) if you mistype

Press OK when you have typed your user name correctly.







Once your user name has been entered and recognised, The system will ask for the password associated with the user name.

If the system does not recognise either the user name or password, it will display a message indicating the problem.

If this happens, click the OK button and try again.

If you do not know your user name or password then you must consult your manager or Refrigeration Contractor When the password has been entered successfully then the Keyboard disappears.



Display Current Alarms



The Current Alarm list for the system is displayed when the ."Alarm " button is touched or clicked with the mouse.

Laprenator 200	the second second		et al vitadone
	Content of the second s	And Brown Provide Structures Provide Structu	
Essen Disade Occurrent at [45, 10 10 17/20/26 Accurrent at [45, 10 10 17/20/26 Accurrent at [45, 10 17/20/26]	Table Datable Etal (* Fada (* Spanse Base (* d	Dist Basic Part Basic Basic Al-of Inspec- transis Linuxia 4 apr 3	<u></u>
Comments			
		COLUMN DISCOUTING	



The Current Alarm list shows all of the alarms that have occurred and whether or not they have cleared or been accepted.

The column marked "Action" shows "A" for an accepted alarm, "C" for a cleared alarm, "+" for an engineering alarm and "!" for an alarm which has had a comment logged by the user who accepted it. The "Time & Date" column shows the time at which an alarm occurred. "Unit" and "System" both indicate details of the unit that had the alarm event. The "Point Name" and "Severity" columns indicate the type of fault.

Touch or click with the mouse on the "Mute" button to stop the audible alarm and the flashing Alarm Lamp or Beacon.

Individual alarm events can be viewed by selecting them by touching with a finger or with the mouse if fitted.

If there is more than one screen-full of alarm events, the other alarms can be viewed by moving the scroll bar on the right hand side of the display. This can be done or by touching or clicking on the buttons on the left-hand side of the screen with the mouse.

Alternatively, touching the scroll bar with a finger by and dragging it down or with the mouse by clicking on the scroll bar and holding down the left mouse button whilst moving the mouse.



on the scroll bar and holding down the left mouse button whilst moving the mouse. If the alarm that has been selected has not been accepted it will be shown in red. In addition, a new button marked "Accept" will normally be shown.

The "Accept" button will only appear if the user password logged on has the necessary access level. To accept the alarm, touch or click on this button with the mouse.

The system will prompt for a comment to be entered against the alarm. The comment can be used to notify other users of some event related to the alarm condition. If no comment is required, click the mouse on the OK button to complete acceptance of the alarm.

Once the alarm has been accepted the details of the time at which the acceptance took place and the user who performed the task will be logged. This information is recorded for auditing purposes.

When all of the alarms have been accepted the sounder in the stock area will deactivate and the alarm lamp will stop flashing. The lamp will only go out when all alarms have been cleared as well as accepted. Alarm clearance is automatically detected by the system.

Having completed the alarm acceptance procedure, return to the main screen by using the mouse to click the "Main Menu" screen, and log-out from the system by clicking on the "Access" button. A message will be displayed to indicate that the log-out has occurred, the mouse should be used to click on the "OK" button.



PASSWORD ALLOCATION

Prior to changing any controller parameter or accepting an alarm on the Consultant system, it is necessary to log on to the system with a valid user name and password that is recognised by the system, as previously described in Authorized User Password Log On on page 14.

Consultant provides a very secure yet flexible security access system for multiple users, each of which has their own password and access authority for any of the areas of the store.

User names may be specific (eg Steve, Jane, B.Smith), or generic (eg Manager, Service,).

Each **user name** has an associated **password** which allows system access at one of eight different levels for each of eight areas.

All parameter changes and alarm accept actions are recorded in the Event Log (see page) with the time and date of the event and the User Name logged on when the event occurred.

Dependent on access level, certain facilities and buttons are inhibited or not displayed for that user. Any authorized user may set up other user names and passwords which have the same or lower system access facilities. For example the store manager can setup the deputy manager with the same facilities as himself and ten other staff with lower level access.





Case Cleaning Consultant Engineering Menu Event Log Defrost